
 

 

www.eden.gov.uk         

I Frost 
Interim Chief Executive 

Date: 13 June 2022 
 
 
 
 

Town Hall, Penrith, Cumbria CA11 7QF 

Tel: 01768 817817 

Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

Cabinet Agenda - 21 June 2022 
 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Cabinet will be held at 6.00 pm on Tuesday, 
21 June 2022 in The Council Chamber, Town Hall, Corney Place, Penrith, CA11 7QF. 
 
Please note: if you would like to attend this meeting, we request that you contact 
Democratic Services to let us know.  Contact details are below*.  We would also 
request that wherever possible, those attending continue to wear face coverings 
and practice hand sanitising measures.  This is due to ongoing concerns in relation 
to the Covid pandemic.   
 

1   Apologies for Absence   
 

2   Minutes   
 

RECOMMENDATION: that the public minutes CAB/130/05/22 to CAB/142/05/22 of 
the meeting of the Cabinet held on 24 May 2022 be confirmed and approved by the 
Chair as a correct record of those proceedings. 
 

3   Declarations of Interest   
 

To receive declarations of the existence and nature of any private interests, both 
disclosable pecuniary and any other registrable interests, in any matter to be 
considered or being considered. 
 

4   Questions and Representations from the Public   
 

To receive questions and representations from the public under Rule 5 of the 
Cabinet (Executive) Procedure Rules of the Constitution. 
 

5   Questions from Members   
 

To receive questions and representations from Members under Rule 4 of the 
Cabinet (Executive) Procedure Rules of the Constitution 
 

6   Asset of Community Value Nomination - The Highland Drove, Great 
Salkeld  (Pages 5 - 20) 
 

To consider Report No: DoR34/22 of the Assistant Director Legal and Democratic 



www.eden.gov.uk 2 

Services which seeks to consider the nomination of the Highland Drove, Great 
Salkeld, as an Asset of Community Value under the Localism Act 2011. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the nomination of the Highland 
Drove, Great Salkeld as an asset of community value be accepted.  
 

7   Asset of Community Value Nomination - Crown and Mitre, Bampton 
Grange  (Pages 21 - 56) 
 

To consider Report No: DoR30/22 of the Assistant Director Legal and Democratic 
Services which seeks to consider nomination of the Crown and Mitre, Bampton 
Grange, as an Asset of Community Value under the Localism Act 2011.  
 
This report is brought before Cabinet again as the item was deferred on 24 May 
2022 to enable the nominating party to clarify the reasons why the land is believed 
to be an asset of community value. No additional information had been received at 
the time of writing this report. However, a verbal update will be provided during the 
Cabinet meeting. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the nomination of the Crown and 
Mitre, Bampton, as an asset of Community value not be accepted.  
 

8   Contract Award - Microsoft Enterprise Agreement  (Pages 57 - 62) 
 

To consider Report No: DoR43/22 of the Interim Director of Resources which seeks 
to award a contract for Microsoft Licences for Eden District Council with effect from 1 
August 2022 with an option that can be used to ensure licences are in place for the 
Westmorland and Furness Unitary Council from 1 April 2023.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that a contract is awarded for the 
provision of Microsoft Licenses to Insight Direct (UK) Ltd.  
 

9   Any Other Items which the Chair decides are urgent   
 

10   Date of Next Scheduled Meeting   
 

The date of the next scheduled meeting of Cabinet be confirmed as the 19 July 
2022.  
 

 
Yours faithfully, 
 

 
 
I Frost 
Interim Chief Executive 



www.eden.gov.uk 3 

 
*Democratic Services Contact: Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk 
or telephone: 01768 212266 
 
 
Encs 
 
For Attention 
All members of the Council 
 
Chair – Councillor V Taylor (Liberal Democrat Group) 
Vice Chair – Councillor M Robinson (Independent Alliance Group) 
 
Councillors 

J Derbyshire, Liberal Democrat Group 
K Greenwood, Independent Alliance Group 
M Rudhall, Liberal Democrat Group 
 

L Sharp, Labour Group 
M Tonkin, Independent Alliance Group 
 

Please Note: Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 
this meeting has been advertised as a public meeting (unless stated otherwise) and 
as such could be filmed or recorded by the media or members of the public 

mailto:cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Report No: DoR34/22 

Eden District Council 

Cabinet 

21 June 2022 

Nomination as an Asset of Community Value – The 
Highland Drove, Great Salkeld 

Portfolio: Resources 

Report from: Assistant Director Legal and Democratic Services 

Wards: Lazonby 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 

1.1 

2 

3 

3.1 

3.2 

3.3 

3.4 

3.5 

3.6 

Purpose 

To consider the nomination of The Highland Drove, Great Salkeld, as an 
Asset of Community Value under the Localism Act 2011. 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the nomination of The Highland Drove, Great Salkeld 
as an asset of community value be accepted.  

Report Details 

A nomination has been received from Great Salkeld Parish Council for The 
Highland Drove, Great Salkeld to be listed as an asset of community value. 
The application is dated 13 April 2022 and was validated on 25 April 2022 
following receipt of supporting information. A copy of the nomination form is 
attached at Appendix A of this report. The supporting information can be 
found at Appendix B. 

A copy of the land to which the nomination refers is attached at Appendix C. 

Under the Localism Act 2011 [“the Act”] and The Assets of Community Value 
(England) Regulations 2012 [“the Regulations”] made thereunder the Council 
has a duty to maintain a list of land in its area which is of community value, 
and also a list of unsuccessful nominations of such land. There is a summary 
of the statutory provisions setting out the procedure and criteria for the 
nomination of land appended to this report as Appendix D. 

The Act goes further to state that a nomination must include certain 
information in order to be considered by the local authority. The nomination 
must include a description of the land, names of occupiers and owners of the 
land, the nominator’s reasons for thinking that the land is of community value 
and evidence that the nominator is eligible to make a nomination. 

The nomination of land as an asset of community value can be made by 
numerous different parties. In this case it has been made by Great Salkeld 
Parish Council under section 89(2)(b)(i) of the Act. The application is valid for 
the purposes of this nomination and thus the Council must consider the 
application.  

Land which is of ‘community value’ is defined in section 88 of the Act. Briefly, 
its principal use must, in the Council’s opinion, ‘further the social wellbeing or 

Page  5

Agenda Item 6



 

social interests of the local community’ and ‘it must be realistic to think’ that 
such a use ‘can continue’ in the future.  

Alternatively, there is a time in the ‘recent past’ when the principal use 
furthered the social wellbeing or interests of the local community and it is 
realistic to think that there is a time in the next five years when it would do so 
again (whether or not in the same way as before). 

3.7  Under the Act ‘social interests’ can include cultural interests, recreational 
interests or sporting interests. The Act does not define ‘recent past’. The 
Department for Communities and Local Government (now the Ministry for 
Housing, Communities and Local Government) commented that “we will leave 
it to the local authority to decide, since 'recent' might be viewed differently in 
different circumstances. For example, 'recent' might be taken as a longer 
period for instance for land which was formerly used by the public until the 
MoD took it over for live ammunition practice, than for a derelict building. Ten 
or even twenty years might be considered recent for the former but not for the 
latter." 

3.8  Great Salkeld Parish Council set out the reasons why they believe that the 
nominated land should be viewed as being of community value in the 
supporting statement at Appendix B, including but not limited to: 

 The Highland Drove Inn is the last remaining public house in the village of 
Great Salkeld (as referenced in the Character Appraisal for Great 
Salkeld’s designation for Conservation Area status); 

 It plays an important role in village life; 

 Prior to its temporary closure due to covid-19 restrictions, the pub hosted 
both darts and snooker teams, locals were able to gather together to 
watch national sporting events, and it also served as being a venue for 
birthday parties, wedding receptions and other milestones; 

 For many years, the pub has been an integral part of the village’s annual 
Sports Day, both as the starting point for the float and providing 
refreshments for participants; 

 The new landlord is actively seeking to engage with the local community, 
with events resuming, providing opportunities for the community to come 
together; 

 The pub provides direct employment opportunities for local people; 

 The pub helps support other businesses within the Parish, in particular 
holiday lets; 

 The closure of the pub during the covid-19 pandemic demonstrated the 
value of the pub to residents of the Parish who welcomed its return. 

3.9 From the evidence presented, the nominated land furthers the social interests of 
the community and is of community value. The Highland Drove is the only public 
house within Great Salkeld and it brings significant social benefit to the local 
community. It is considered that the nomination should be accepted. 

  

Page  6



 

4 Policy Framework 

4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 

 Healthy, safe and secure; 

 Connected; and 

 Creative 

5 Consultation 

5.1 Consultation has been conducted in accordance with the statutory 
requirements of the Localism Act 2011 and the local ward member has been 
notified of the nomination. As the Parish council nominated the land, 
notification to them is superfluous.  

5.2 Representations have been received from the local ward member, as follows: 

“The Highland Drove is an established public house and serves Great Salkeld 

and the surrounding area very well. The application and the comments from 

the Parish Council describe the contribution the premises make to the local 

community and the effect of the closure during the recent pandemic. 

I support the application for designation as an asset of community value.” 

5.3 Notification of the nomination was provided to the owner of The Highland 
Drove together with details as to how to comment on the nomination. No 
comment has been received from the owner.  

5.4 Notification of the nomination was provided to the occupier of The Highland 
Drove together with details as to how to comment on the nomination. No 
comment has been received from the occupier. 

6 Implications 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income 
must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in 
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019. 

6.1.2 There are no proposals in this report that would reduce or increase resources, 
save for as referred to in paragraph 6.2.2 below.  

6.2 Legal 

6.2.1 The legislation provides an appeal mechanism for owners whose land is listed 
to a First Tier Tribunal, but contains no separate provision for disappointed 
applicants or nominating groups. However, interested parties could seek 
permission for a judicial review by the High Court of the Council’s decision on 
various grounds, such as illegality, irrationality or procedural impropriety. 

6.2.2 The Regulations provide that an owner or former owner of listed land is entitled 
to compensation from the Council if, at a time when the person was the owner 
of the land and the land was listed, they did incur loss or expense which would 
likely not have been incurred if the land had not been listed. This situation may 
potentially arise if the nominated land were to be sold and the value of the land 
was affected by the moratorium period. It is the owner’s responsibility to provide 
evidence of the extra costs incurred and must be made within 13 weeks of the 

Page  7



 

costs being incurred. However, please note that the compensation scheme 
does not usually extend to public authorities and bodies as defined at 12.5 of 
Appendix D. 

6.2.3 The Council is required to determine the nomination within eight weeks of 
receipt. This nomination should have been determined on or before 20 June 
2022. Whilst it is acknowledged that this report will be presented to the 
Cabinet slightly after the determination date, the application requires to be 
determined. 

6.3 Human Resources 

6.3.1 There are no Human Resources implications arising out of the proposal. 

6.4 Statutory Considerations  

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed measures to 
address: 

Equality and 
Diversity 

There are not considered to be any equality or diversity 
implications relevant to the subject matter and the 
Council’s responsibilities nor are there any rurality 
implications. 

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

The report takes into account the social interests and 
wellbeing of the community. There are not considered to 
be any adverse impacts under this heading. 

Crime and 
Disorder 

The Council is aware that adequate amenity provision and 
the social interests and wellbeing of the community are all 
matters that are likely to help reduce crime and disorder. 

Children and 
Safeguarding 

The Council is aware that adequate amenity provision and 
the social interests and wellbeing of the community are all 
matters that are likely to help promote the welfare of 
children. 

6.5 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

Members’ 
attention has 
been drawn 
above in 
paragraphs 6.2 
and Appendix D 
to the risk of its 
decision being 
challenged. 

Legal 
challenge and 
compensation 
claims 

The Council cannot be sure of the likelihood 
of any such challenge, which will depend 
partly on the resources available to those 
aggrieved. Legal and financial risks are 
closely linked, as is any impact on the 
Council’s reputation. They are largely 
dictated by the provisions of the legislation 
and the Council’s duties as explained. 
Regardless of the risks the Council must 
proceed to make a decision in accordance 
with its statutory duty. 

7 Other Options Considered 

7.1 None as the statutory criteria are considered to be met. The Council has a 
statutory duty to make a decision on the nomination. 

  

Page  8



 

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

8.1 To carry out the Council’s statutory duty as the determining authority under 
the provisions of the Localism Act 2011. 

8.2 Please also refer to 3.9 above.  

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 

Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 27 May 2022 

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 9 June 2022 

Relevant Assistant Director 9 June 2022 

Background Papers:  None 

Appendices: Appendix A - Nomination Form  

 Appendix B - Supporting Statement   

 Appendix C - Plan 

 Appendix D - Statement of Statutory Provisions  

Contact Officer:  Lisa Tremble, Assistant Director Legal and Democratic 
Services (Monitoring Officer) 

Page  9



Appendix A

Page  10



Page  11



Highland Drove Inn, Great Salkeld 

Page  12



Appendix B

Page  13



Appendix C

Page  14



Eden District Council 

Assets of Community Value 

A Summary of the Statutory Provisions 
Procedure to Nominate Land 

1. Introduction

1.1 Under the Localism Act, the Council has to maintain a list of land in its area
that is of community value. The obligation arises under Section 87 of the
Localism Act. It is for the Council to decide the form and content of its list of
assets of community value, subject to whatever regulations the Secretary of
State may make.

2. Land of Community Value

2.1 A building or other land in the Council’s area is land of community value if in
the authority’s opinion:

a) an actual or current use of the building or other land furthers the social
wellbeing or social interests of the local community; and

b) it is realistic to think that there can continue to be non-ancillary use of the
building or other land which will further (whether or not in the same way)
the social wellbeing or social interests of the local community.

3. The Procedure for including Land in a List

3.1 Land in the Council’s area which is of community value may be included in the
list only:

a) in response to a community nomination; or

b) were permitted by regulations made by the Secretary of State.

3.2 A community nomination means one which nominates the land in the area for 
inclusion in the list of assets and is made by a Parish Council or by a person 
that is a voluntary or community body with a local connection. 

3.3 Regulations may enable a nomination to be made by someone in 
circumstances other than where it is a community nomination. 

3.4 Upon the community nomination being made it must be considered. The 
Council must accept the nomination if the land is in the Council’s area and of 
community value. If the Council is required to accept the nomination, the 
authority must cause the land to be included in the list of assets. If the 
nomination is unsuccessful the Council must give to the person who made the 
nomination the authority’s written reasons for its decision that the land could 
be included in the list. 

Appendix D

Page  15



4. Notice of Inclusion 

4.1 The Council must give a written notice of the inclusion or removal of land in its 
list of assets of community value to: 

a) the owner of the land; 

b) the occupier of the land if he is not the owner; 

c) if the land was included in the list in response to a community 
nomination, the person who made the nomination; and 

d) any person who is so specified in the regulations. 

4.2 If appropriate where it is not reasonably practicable to give a notice, the 
Council may instead take reasonable alternative steps to bring the notice to 
the person’s attention. 

5. Review of a Decision 

5.1 The owner of the land included within the authority’s list of assets of 
community value may ask the authority to review the decision. The Council 
must notify the person concerned of the decision and the reasons for the 
decision on any review. The Council may remove the land and if it does so, 
must give notice to the body which made any community nomination. 

6. List of Unsuccessful Community Nominations 

6.1 The Council must maintain a list of land in its area that has been nominated 
by unsuccessful community nominations. This list is to be known as the list of 
land nominated by unsuccessful community nominations. 

7. Publication 

7.1 The Council must publish its list of assets of community value and the list of 
any land nominated by unsuccessful community nominations. The list must be 
available for inspection. The Council must provide a free copy of its list of 
assets to any person who asks for it. 

8. Moratorium 

8.1 The person who is the owner of land which is included within the authority’s 
list of assets of community value must not enter into a relevant disposal of the 
land unless certain conditions are met. The conditions are: 

a) The particular person has notified the Council in writing of that person’s 
wish to enter into relevant disposal of the land; 

b) Either the interim moratorium period has ended without the Council 
having received from any Community Interest Group a written request 
for the Group to be treated as a potential bidder for the land or the full 
moratorium period has ended; or 

c) That the protected period has not ended. 

 

Page  16



8.2 There are exclusions from the moratorium where a disposal is by way of gift or 
in relation to a disposal by will or intestacy, amongst others. 

8.3 The full moratorium period means six months beginning with the date upon 
which the Council receives notification under Condition 8.1 a. 

8.4 The interim moratorium period means six weeks beginning with the date upon 
which the Council receives notification under Condition 8.1 a. 

8.5 The protected period means the period of eighteen months beginning with the 
date upon which the Council receives notification in relation to the disposal 
under Condition 8.1 a. 

8.6 The meaning of the term “relevant disposal” is defined in the Act: Section 96 
and includes the disposal of the freehold estate or the grant of a qualifying 
leasehold estate. The effect of the moratorium is that the community has to 
make an initial expression of interest in six months and the owner cannot sell 
to anyone else for six months if it does. 

8.7 The effect of listing is to prevent a sale until there has been an adequate 
period to submit a bid should the owner wish to sell. 

8.8 The Council’s list of assets must reveal that the notice has been received and 
indicate the date upon which the notice was received and the moratorium 
periods which are applicable. 

8.9 If the Council receives from a Community Interest Group a written request to 
be treated as a potential bidder, the Council must pass that notification onto 
the owner or inform the owner of the details of the request. This obligation 
arises if the notice is received before the end of the interim moratorium period. 

8.10 The Localism Act enables the Secretary of State to make regulations 
providing for the payment of compensation. 

9. Local Land Charge 

9.1 If land is included within the list of assets of community value, it should be 
included in the local land charges register. The Secretary of State may make 
regulations providing for enforcement and do anything to give advice and 
assistance in relation to land of community value. The Council has a duty to 
co-operate with other local authorities if different parts of any land are in 
different local authority areas. The District Council is the appropriate local 
authority for the purposes of the application of these provisions. A Parish 
Council is not a local authority for this purpose. A County Council is only a 
local authority for this purpose where there is no District Council in the area 
concerned. 

10. The Regulations 

10.1 The Secretary of State has made the Assets of Community Value (England) 
Regulations 2012. The Regulations came into force on 21 September 2012, 
the day after they were made. The Regulations identify land which is not of 
community value. The following are not land which is of community value and 
therefore may not be listed: 

Page  17



 A residence together with any land connected with that residence, 
however, land which is a residence falls within the exclusion may be listed 
if the residences of a building that is partly used as a residence and but 
for that residential use of the building the land would be eligible for listing. 

 Land on which a site license is required under the Caravan Sites and 
Control of Development Act cannot be listed. 

 Operational land as defined in Section 263 of the Town & Country 
Planning Act 1990 cannot be listed. Operational land is that which belongs 
to a statutory undertaker. 

10.2 The Regulations define what is meant by “a local connection”. The activities 
that the body concerned must be wholly or partly connected with the Council’s 
area and there may be a requirement for it to have at least twenty-one local 
members if it is a Neighbourhood Forum. A voluntary or community body 
means: 

 a Neighbourhood Forum 

 Parish Council 

 a non incorporated body with at least twenty-one individuals who are 
members and which does not distribute any surplus to its members 

 a charity 

 a company limited by guarantee which does not distribute any surplus to 
its members 

 an industrial and providence society which similarly does not distribute 
any surplus; and 

 a community interest company. 

11. Content of a Community Nomination 

11.1 A community nomination must include: 

 A description of the nominated land including its proposed boundaries; 

 A statement of all the information which the nominator has with regard to 
the current occupants and the owner; 

 The nominator’s reasons for thinking that the Council should conclude the 
land is of community value and the evidence that the nominator is able to 
make the community nomination. 

11.2 The Council has a period of eight weeks to respond to the nomination. The 
Council must notify a Parish Council, the owner of the land and any occupant 
that a nomination is under consideration. 

12. Compensation 

12.1 An owner is entitled to compensation from the Council of such amount as the 
Council may determine in the following circumstances: 

Page  18



12.2 That the person making the claim has at the time when the person was the 
owner of the land the land was listed incurred loss or expense in relation to 
the land which would be likely not to have been incurred if the land had not 
been listed. 

12.3 The regulations identify that a claim arising from any period of delay in 
entering into a binding agreement to sell the land which is wholly caused by 
the prohibition upon the disposal and a claim for reasonable legal expenses 
incurred in any successful appeal against the Council’s decision are claims 
which may be made. 

12.4 A claim for compensation must be made in writing to the Council and before 
the end of the period of thirteen weeks after the loss or expense was incurred. 
The claim must state the amount of compensation which is being sought and 
be supported by evidence. The Council must give the claimant written reasons 
for its decision in relation to any request for compensation. 

12.5 The regulations identify that a body which has its accounts audited under 
Section 2 of the Audit Commission Act 1998, a department or body to which 
Section 6 of the National Audit Act 1983 applies and a body which has its 
resources examinable under Section 7 of the 1983 Act may not claim 
compensation. 

12.6 A person who makes a claim for compensation may ask the Council to review 
its decisions in relation to compensation, a written for a decision must be 
given. An appeal may be made to a first tier tribunal against any decision of 
the Council on any review. 

12.7 The Council must notify the owners and mortgagees of any listed land as 
soon as practicable after the land is entered on the register. 

12.8 The regulations set out a procedure for a listing and a compensation review 
and identified relevant disposals to which the Act does not apply. There are 
fifteen such examples. 

Page  19



This page is intentionally left blank



Report No: DoR30/22 

Eden District Council 

Cabinet 
21 June 2022 

Nomination as an Asset of Community Value - The Crown 
and Mitre, Bampton Grange 

Portfolio: Resources  

Report from: Assistant Director Legal and Democratic Services 

Wards: Askham 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 

1.1 To consider the nomination of the Crown and Mitre, Bampton Grange, as an 
Asset of Community Value under the Localism Act 2011. 

1.2 This report is brought before Cabinet again as the item was deferred on 
24 May 2022 to enable the nominating party to clarify the reasons why the 
land is believed to be an asset of community value. No additional information 
had been received at the time of writing this report. However, a verbal update 
will be provided during the Cabinet meeting.  

2 Recommendation 

It is recommended that the nomination of the Crown and Mitre, Bampton as 
an asset of community value not be accepted.  

3 Report Details 

3.1 A nomination has been received from the Crown and Mitre Conservation 
Group for the Crown and Mitre, Bampton Grange, to be listed as an asset of 
community value. The application is dated 13 January 2022. A copy of the 
nomination form is attached at Appendix A of this report.  

3.2 A copy of the land to which the nomination refers is attached at Appendix C.  

3.3 Under the Localism Act 2011 [“the Act”] and The Assets of Community Value 
(England) Regulations 2012 [“the Regulations”] made thereunder the Council 
has a duty to maintain a list of land in its area which is of community value, 
and also a list of unsuccessful nominations of such land. There is a summary 
of the statutory provisions setting out the procedure and criteria for the 
nomination of land appended to this report as Appendix D. 

3.4 The Act goes further to state that a nomination must include certain 
information in order to be considered by the local authority. The nomination 
must include a description of the land, names of occupiers and owners of the 
land, the nominator’s reasons for thinking that the land is of community value 
and evidence that the nominator is eligible to make a nomination. 

3.5 The nomination of land as an asset of community value can be made by 
numerous different parties. In this case it has been made by the Crown and 
Mitre Conservation Group under section 89(2)(b)(iii) of the Act. Regulation 5 
confirms that a voluntary or community body can be an unincorporated body 

Page  21

Agenda Item 7



‘whose members include at least 21 individuals’ and ‘which does not distribute 
any surplus it makes to its members’. The application is valid for the purposes 
of this nomination and thus the Council must consider the application.  

3.6  Land which is of ‘community value’ is defined in section 88 of the Act. Briefly, 
its principal use must, in the Council’s opinion, ‘further the social wellbeing or 
social interests of the local community’ and ‘it must be realistic to think’ that 
such a use ‘can continue’ in the future.  

Alternatively, there is a time in the ‘recent past’ when the principal use 
furthered the social wellbeing or interests of the local community and it is 
realistic to think that there is a time in the next five years when it would do so 
again (whether or not in the same way as before). 

3.7  Under the Act ‘social interests’ can include cultural interests, recreational 
interests or sporting interests. The Act does not define ‘recent past’. The 
Department for Communities and Local Government (now the Ministry for 
Housing, Communities and Local Government) commented that “we will leave 
it to the local authority to decide, since 'recent' might be viewed differently in 
different circumstances. For example, 'recent' might be taken as a longer 
period for instance for land which was formerly used by the public until the 
MoD took it over for live ammunition practice, than for a derelict building. Ten 
or even twenty years might be considered recent for the former but not for the 
latter." 

3.8  The Crown and Mitre Conservation Group sets out the reasons why they 
believe that the nominated land should be viewed as being of community 
value in the supporting document attached to Appendix A, including but not 
limited to: 

 The Crown and Mitre has been a destination for visitors to the area, in 
particular Coast to Coast walkers as the area is a stop along the route  

 It has provided local employment  

 It has furthered the social wellbeing and interests of the local community 
by supporting darts and quiz teams, local meetings, celebrations and 
wakes 

 Social interaction has encouraged community cohesion and a collective 
sense of wellbeing; the village is an isolated community with poor 
transport links and an increasingly less mobile population so the 
availability of the Crown and Mitre is an important facility for the 
community   

 The nomination also highlights extracts from planning documents (please 
note the planning authority is the Lake District National Park).  

3.9  The nomination form explains that the Crown and Mitre building (dating from 
circa 1850) had been used as a pub with rooms. However, it was sold in 
October 2021 and has since been advertised as a self-catering holiday let with 
12 bedrooms sleeping up to 24. The current owner has addressed this in their 
consultation response (see Appendix F) stating the premises is a hotel, 
continues to be used as a hotel and the aforementioned advert was part of a 
strategy to increase bookings and ensure the property remains viable. 

3.10 The nominated land falls within the remit of the Lake District National Park 
Planning Authority (“LDNP). An officer of the LDNP explained that it is not 

Page  22



entirely clear at present what the authorised use of the property is. There 
appears to be three options - public house (suis generis use), hotel (C1 use) 
or mixed use (also suis generis). 

3.11 It is understood that a change of use to self-catering holiday letting 
accommodation from either of the three options (drinking establishment, hotel 
or mixed use) could constitute a material change of use requiring a planning 
application and no such application has been submitted. The LDNP is likely to 
issue a Planning Contravention Notice to seek further information in respect of 
the current use.  

3.12  It was not considered appropriate to further delay a determination of this ACV 
nomination on the basis that the permitted class use is yet to be determined. 
This is because there is not a current planning application and no certificate of 
lawfulness has been issued. Title documents obtained recently from HM Land 
Registry describe the land as Crown and Mitre Hotel. However, it is the 
principal use of the establishment in the recent past, or likely use in the next 
five years, which is of importance for the purposes of determining this ACV.  

3.13  Land used as a residence is often exempt from being an ACV. However, 
Schedule 1 of the Regulations confirms that land can be listed if, but for the 
residential use the land, it would be eligible for listing. Therefore, if the 
principal use of the hotel/pub (other than as accommodation) furthered the 
social interests of the community in the recent past and it is likely to do so in 
the next 5 years, it can be added to the list. 

3.14  The Crown and Mitre has been nominated twice before in 2017. During the 
Executive meeting on 4 July 2017, it was resolved that the application be refused 
on the basis that the Executive were not satisfied that the listing of the asset 
would further the social wellbeing of the community based on information that 
had been supplied by the owner that indicated that other facilities were available 
in the village to further social wellbeing. Further, on 7 November 2017, it was 
again resolved that the application to list the Crown and Mitre, Bampton Grange 
be rejected on the grounds that there were other facilities within the village and 
the application did not meet the criteria of furthering the social wellbeing of the 
local community. Therefore, it is worthwhile noting that The Mardale pub has 
since closed but the community are in the process of raising funds for renovation 
work to be done.  

3.15 Consideration has been given to whether the land has been used for the relevant 
purpose in the ‘recent past’. Any unauthorised use of the premises (if any) should 
not be relied upon in considering the realistic use of the land in the next 5 years.  

3.16  Public houses/hotels have been forced to close or significantly reduce their 
operations intermittently since the onset of COVID-19. However, the Crown and 
Mitre has only been open to overnight guests and has not opened to the general 
public since restrictions ceased. The term ‘recent past’ is open to interpretation 
and Members should take all representations into consideration. 

3.17 As above, for a nomination to be accepted it must also be realistic to think that 
the relevant community use (either in the same or different way) will occur in the 
next 5 years. 

 On the basis of the information available, it does not appear likely that the Crown 
and Mitre will reopen to, and be used by, the community in the next 5 years.  

Page  23



3.18 It is pertinent to highlight that, if the nomination was successful, this would not 
grant any ownership rights to the nominator, nor would they be entitled to 
stipulate how the Crown and Mitre trades or operates.  

3.19 In considering the nomination, Members should focus on the community use of 
the Crown and Mitre. In this regard, it is believed that the nomination should not 
be accepted based on the following: 

a) Although the Crown and Mitre may have been used for activities such as darts 
teams, quizzes, celebrations, wakes etc. previously, it is not currently used for 
such purposes. 

b) It is unlikely that there will be a time in the next five years when it would 
further the social interests and wellbeing of the community as the Crown and 
Mitre is not currently open to the public (other than overnight guests), nor is 
food served. Although the market is difficult to foresee, the owner does not 
have intentions to serve the wider public at present.  

4 Policy Framework 

4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 

 Healthy, safe and secure; 

 Connected; and 

 Creative 

5 Consultation 

5.1 Consultation has been conducted in accordance with the statutory 
requirements of the Localism Act 2011 and the local ward member and Parish 
Council have been notified of the nomination. 

5.2 Representations have been made confirming that Bampton Parish Council 
resolved to fully support this application as a community asset during their 
meeting on 6th April 2022, the council. 

5.3 Representations have been made on behalf of the Owner and these can be 
found at Appendix F, including but not limited to the following:  

 The property has been marketed via a number of agents since 2008 and 
there has been no serious offer by a community organisation to the 
owner’s knowledge  

 The nomination is believed to be vague and the owner was not informed 
of the nomination prior to EDC’s consultation period 

 It is unclear how visitors from afar will benefit the social wellbeing and 
interests of the community as they are transient in nature. The economic 
benefit would be accrued mostly by the owner not the community 

 As an essential local service, the property has operated as a hotel and will 
continue to do so and how the property operates commercially is not a 
matter for an ACV 

 No development proposal has been suggested  

 The nomination is superfluous in that the community, Bampton Valley 
Community Pub Co-op, has raised funds for The Mardale public house  

Page  24



 The BVCP website makes clear there is a connection, at least in the minds of 
the BVCP, between the Crown and Mitre and The Mardale. The consultation 
response provides extracts from the BVCP website 

5.4 Further representations have been made by the Crown and Mitre Conservation 
Group which provide additional background information in relation to the use of 
the pub, these can be found at Appendix G. 

5.5 It is worth clarifying that there is no requirement for an applicant to provide notice 
of the nomination given there is a statutory consultation process. Furthermore, 
day to day commercial business decisions are not determined by an ACV 
nomination but the use of the property/business is an important consideration as 
to whether the land ought to be nominated as a community asset.  

6 Implications 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income 
must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in 
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019. 

6.1.2 There are no proposals in this report that would reduce or increase resources, 
save for as referred to in paragraph 6.2.2 below.  

6.2 Legal 

6.2.1 The legislation provides an appeal mechanism for owners whose land is listed 
to a First Tier Tribunal, but contains no separate provision for disappointed 
applicants or nominating groups. However, interested parties could seek 
permission for a judicial review by the High Court of the Council’s decision on 
various grounds, such as illegality, irrationality or procedural impropriety. 

6.2.2 The Regulations provide that an owner or former owner of listed land is entitled 
to compensation from the Council if, at a time when the person was the owner 
of the land and the land was listed, they did incur loss or expense which would 
likely not have been incurred if the land had not been listed. This situation may 
potentially arise if the nominated land were to be sold and the value of the land 
was affected by the moratorium period. It is the owner’s responsibility to provide 
evidence of the extra costs incurred and must be made within 13 weeks of the 
costs being incurred. However, please note that the compensation scheme 
does not usually extend to public authorities and bodies as defined at 12.5 of 
Appendix D. 

6.2.3 The Council is required to determine the nomination within eight weeks of 
receipt. This nomination should have been determined on or before 10 March 
2022. Whilst it is acknowledged that this report will be presented to the 
Cabinet after the determination date, the application requires to be 
determined. 

6.3 Human Resources 

6.3.1 There are no Human Resources implications arising out of the proposal. 

6.4 Statutory Considerations  

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed measures to 
address: 

Equality and 
Diversity 

There are not considered to be any equality or diversity 
implications relevant to the subject matter and the 

Page  25



Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed measures to 
address: 

Council’s responsibilities nor are there any rurality 
implications. 

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

The report takes into account the social interests and 
wellbeing of the community. There are not considered to 
be any adverse impacts under this heading. 

Crime and 
Disorder 

The Council is aware that adequate amenity provision and 
the social interests and wellbeing of the community are all 
matters that are likely to help reduce crime and disorder. 

Children and 
Safeguarding 

The Council is aware that adequate amenity provision and 
the social interests and wellbeing of the community are all 
matters that are likely to help promote the welfare of 
children. 

6.5 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

Members’ 
attention has 
been drawn 
above in 
paragraphs 6.2 
and Appendix D 
to the risk of its 
decision being 
challenged. 

Legal 
challenge and 
compensation 
claims 

The Council cannot be sure of the likelihood 
of any such challenge, which will depend 
partly on the resources available to those 
aggrieved. Legal and financial risks are 
closely linked, as is any impact on the 
Council’s reputation. They are largely 
dictated by the provisions of the legislation 
and the Council’s duties as explained. 
Regardless of the risks the Council must 
proceed to make a decision in accordance 
with its statutory duty. 

7 Other Options Considered 

7.1 None as the statutory criteria are considered to be met. The Council has a 
statutory duty to make a decision on the nomination. 

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

8.1 To carry out the Council’s statutory duty as the determining authority under 
the provisions of the Localism Act 2011. 

8.2 Please also refer to 3.13 above. 

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 

Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 25 April 2022 

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 3 May 2022 

Relevant Assistant Director N/A 

  

Page  26



Background Papers:  None 

Appendices: Appendix A - Nomination Form  

Appendix B - Supporting Statements  

Appendix C - Plan 

Appendix D - Statement of Statutory Provisions  

Appendix E - Representations from Bampton PC 

Appendix F - Representations on behalf of the Owner  

Appendix G - Representations from Crown and Mitre 
Conservation Group 

Contact Officer: Lisa Tremble, Assistant Director Legal and Democratic 
Services (Monitoring Officer) 

Page  27



APPENDIX A

Page  28



Page  29



APPENDIX B

Page  30



Page  31



Page  32



Page  33



Page  34



Page  35



Page  36



Page  37



Page  38



Page  39



APPENDIX C

Page  40



Eden District Council 

Assets of Community Value 

A Summary of the Statutory Provisions 
Procedure to Nominate Land 

1. Introduction

1.1 Under the Localism Act, the Council has to maintain a list of land in its area
that is of community value. The obligation arises under Section 87 of the
Localism Act. It is for the Council to decide the form and content of its list of
assets of community value, subject to whatever regulations the Secretary of
State may make.

2. Land of Community Value

2.1 A building or other land in the Council’s area is land of community value if in
the authority’s opinion:

a) an actual or current use of the building or other land furthers the social
wellbeing or social interests of the local community; and

b) it is realistic to think that there can continue to be non-ancillary use of the
building or other land which will further (whether or not in the same way)
the social wellbeing or social interests of the local community.

3. The Procedure for including Land in a List

3.1 Land in the Council’s area which is of community value may be included in the
list only:

a) in response to a community nomination; or

b) were permitted by regulations made by the Secretary of State.

3.2 A community nomination means one which nominates the land in the area for 
inclusion in the list of assets and is made by a Parish Council or by a person 
that is a voluntary or community body with a local connection. 

3.3 Regulations may enable a nomination to be made by someone in 
circumstances other than where it is a community nomination. 

3.4 Upon the community nomination being made it must be considered. The 
Council must accept the nomination if the land is in the Council’s area and of 
community value. If the Council is required to accept the nomination, the 
authority must cause the land to be included in the list of assets. If the 
nomination is unsuccessful the Council must give to the person who made the 
nomination the authority’s written reasons for its decision that the land could 
be included in the list. 

APPENDIX D

Page  41



4. Notice of Inclusion

4.1 The Council must give a written notice of the inclusion or removal of land in its
list of assets of community value to:

a) the owner of the land;

b) the occupier of the land if he is not the owner;

c) if the land was included in the list in response to a community
nomination, the person who made the nomination; and

d) any person who is so specified in the regulations.

4.2 If appropriate where it is not reasonably practicable to give a notice, the 
Council may instead take reasonable alternative steps to bring the notice to 
the person’s attention. 

5. Review of a Decision

5.1 The owner of the land included within the authority’s list of assets of
community value may ask the authority to review the decision. The Council
must notify the person concerned of the decision and the reasons for the
decision on any review. The Council may remove the land and if it does so,
must give notice to the body which made any community nomination.

6. List of Unsuccessful Community Nominations

6.1 The Council must maintain a list of land in its area that has been nominated
by unsuccessful community nominations. This list is to be known as the list of
land nominated by unsuccessful community nominations.

7. Publication

7.1 The Council must publish its list of assets of community value and the list of
any land nominated by unsuccessful community nominations. The list must be
available for inspection. The Council must provide a free copy of its list of
assets to any person who asks for it.

8. Moratorium

8.1 The person who is the owner of land which is included within the authority’s
list of assets of community value must not enter into a relevant disposal of the
land unless certain conditions are met. The conditions are:

a) The particular person has notified the Council in writing of that person’s
wish to enter into relevant disposal of the land;

b) Either the interim moratorium period has ended without the Council
having received from any Community Interest Group a written request
for the Group to be treated as a potential bidder for the land or the full
moratorium period has ended; or

c) That the protected period has not ended.

Page  42



8.2 There are exclusions from the moratorium where a disposal is by way of gift or 
in relation to a disposal by will or intestacy, amongst others. 

8.3 The full moratorium period means six months beginning with the date upon 
which the Council receives notification under Condition 8.1 a. 

8.4 The interim moratorium period means six weeks beginning with the date upon 
which the Council receives notification under Condition 8.1 a. 

8.5 The protected period means the period of eighteen months beginning with the 
date upon which the Council receives notification in relation to the disposal 
under Condition 8.1 a. 

8.6 The meaning of the term “relevant disposal” is defined in the Act: Section 96 
and includes the disposal of the freehold estate or the grant of a qualifying 
leasehold estate. The effect of the moratorium is that the community has to 
make an initial expression of interest in six months and the owner cannot sell 
to anyone else for six months if it does. 

8.7 The effect of listing is to prevent a sale until there has been an adequate 
period to submit a bid should the owner wish to sell. 

8.8 The Council’s list of assets must reveal that the notice has been received and 
indicate the date upon which the notice was received and the moratorium 
periods which are applicable. 

8.9 If the Council receives from a Community Interest Group a written request to 
be treated as a potential bidder, the Council must pass that notification onto 
the owner or inform the owner of the details of the request. This obligation 
arises if the notice is received before the end of the interim moratorium period. 

8.10 The Localism Act enables the Secretary of State to make regulations 
providing for the payment of compensation. 

9. Local Land Charge

9.1 If land is included within the list of assets of community value, it should be
included in the local land charges register. The Secretary of State may make
regulations providing for enforcement and do anything to give advice and
assistance in relation to land of community value. The Council has a duty to
co-operate with other local authorities if different parts of any land are in
different local authority areas. The District Council is the appropriate local
authority for the purposes of the application of these provisions. A Parish
Council is not a local authority for this purpose. A County Council is only a
local authority for this purpose where there is no District Council in the area
concerned.

10. The Regulations

10.1 The Secretary of State has made the Assets of Community Value (England) 
Regulations 2012. The Regulations came into force on 21 September 2012, 
the day after they were made. The Regulations identify land which is not of 
community value. The following are not land which is of community value and 
therefore may not be listed: 

Page  43



 A residence together with any land connected with that residence,
however, land which is a residence falls within the exclusion may be listed
if the residences of a building that is partly used as a residence and but
for that residential use of the building the land would be eligible for listing.

 Land on which a site license is required under the Caravan Sites and
Control of Development Act cannot be listed.

 Operational land as defined in Section 263 of the Town & Country
Planning Act 1990 cannot be listed. Operational land is that which belongs
to a statutory undertaker.

10.2 The Regulations define what is meant by “a local connection”. The activities 
that the body concerned must be wholly or partly connected with the Council’s 
area and there may be a requirement for it to have at least twenty-one local 
members if it is a Neighbourhood Forum. A voluntary or community body 
means: 

 a Neighbourhood Forum

 Parish Council

 a non incorporated body with at least twenty-one individuals who are
members and which does not distribute any surplus to its members

 a charity

 a company limited by guarantee which does not distribute any surplus to
its members

 an industrial and providence society which similarly does not distribute
any surplus; and

 a community interest company.

11. Content of a Community Nomination

11.1 A community nomination must include: 

 A description of the nominated land including its proposed boundaries;

 A statement of all the information which the nominator has with regard to
the current occupants and the owner;

 The nominator’s reasons for thinking that the Council should conclude the
land is of community value and the evidence that the nominator is able to
make the community nomination.

11.2 The Council has a period of eight weeks to respond to the nomination. The 
Council must notify a Parish Council, the owner of the land and any occupant 
that a nomination is under consideration. 

12. Compensation

12.1 An owner is entitled to compensation from the Council of such amount as the 
Council may determine in the following circumstances: 

Page  44



12.2 That the person making the claim has at the time when the person was the 
owner of the land the land was listed incurred loss or expense in relation to 
the land which would be likely not to have been incurred if the land had not 
been listed. 

12.3 The regulations identify that a claim arising from any period of delay in 
entering into a binding agreement to sell the land which is wholly caused by 
the prohibition upon the disposal and a claim for reasonable legal expenses 
incurred in any successful appeal against the Council’s decision are claims 
which may be made. 

12.4 A claim for compensation must be made in writing to the Council and before 
the end of the period of thirteen weeks after the loss or expense was incurred. 
The claim must state the amount of compensation which is being sought and 
be supported by evidence. The Council must give the claimant written reasons 
for its decision in relation to any request for compensation. 

12.5 The regulations identify that a body which has its accounts audited under 
Section 2 of the Audit Commission Act 1998, a department or body to which 
Section 6 of the National Audit Act 1983 applies and a body which has its 
resources examinable under Section 7 of the 1983 Act may not claim 
compensation. 

12.6 A person who makes a claim for compensation may ask the Council to review 
its decisions in relation to compensation, a written for a decision must be 
given. An appeal may be made to a first tier tribunal against any decision of 
the Council on any review. 

12.7 The Council must notify the owners and mortgagees of any listed land as 
soon as practicable after the land is entered on the register. 

12.8 The regulations set out a procedure for a listing and a compensation review 
and identified relevant disposals to which the Act does not apply. There are 
fifteen such examples. 

Page  45



Clerk 
Bampton Parish Council 

Tel: 

Email: 

Thursday, 7th April 2022 

Solicitor 
Legal and Democratic Services (MO) 
Eden District Council 
Town Hall 
Penrith 
CA11 7QF 

Dear 

Re: Nomination to Register Crown and Mitre, Bampton Grange, as an Asset of Community 
Value 

At the Parish Council meeting on 6th April 2022, the council resolved to fully support this 
application as a community asset. 

Yours sincerely 

Clerk to Bampton Parish Council 

APPENDIX E

Page  46



APPENDIX F

Page  47



Page  48



Page  49



Page  50



Page  51



Page  52



Page  53



APPENDIX G 
 

It will be useful if we provide some background as to how and why the Crown and Mitre 
pub got to where it is today. 

The previous owner was very vocal and public about her dislike of owning and running a 
pub. She didn’t enjoy living in the village and was impolite to many locals. In a small 
community, word easily spread that many were not welcome in their village pub. 

Between 2015 and 2017 the landlady / owner of The Crown and Mitre facilitated the 
following: 

 Both Pool teams (Shap & District league) were forced to disband as the pool table 
was removed. 

 Both Darts teams (Shap & District league) had to disband as it was decided to close 
the pub in Jan & Feb, so no venue for home matches.  

 Church choir stopped coming into to pub. To quote a choir member “She at best 
made us feel unwelcome and at worst was rude to us”.  

 History Society stopped because they too were made to feel unwelcome. 

 Quiz team were asked to find a new venue, to quote the owner, “as they were too 
much trouble”. 

 Sunday Card Night curtailed as the owner felt they “didn’t spend enough”.  

So, we believe the Pub was intentionally and systematically run down by the previous 
owner. 

During 2017, the owner and her partner informed the locals that they were going to seek 
planning permission to convert the pub into flats. This prompted the first ACV Nomination 
in Oct 2017. The owner objected to the ACV on the grounds that that the business was 
no longer supported by locals. She recruited the assistance of a local Parish Councillor 
from Askham, to support her objection, even though he was never seen in the Crown, nor 
resident in the parish. This subsequently prompted an article in the local paper regarding 
the honesty of his statement. The ACV application failed. Following on from this, several 
locals involved in this ACV nomination and others who she felt had not been supportive 
of her were barred from the premises.  

Despite this the Crown and Mitre continued to function as a pub serving meals and drinks 
to its’ residents and the public until the beginning of the Covid pandemic. The pub 
remained popular with Coast-to-Coast walkers and had enough potential custom to be 
full most of the week. 

During the pandemic it remained open as a pub serving drinks to locals and visitors, 
abiding by lockdown rules. At this time food was usually only available to residents of the 
pub. The Crown and Mitre closed to the public in the summer of 2021 (when it was more 
aggressively marketed for sale), during this time it served pub residents only. 

Over recent years (to 2021) the pub has also continued to be used for a number of 
events / activities including; local hunt evenings, birthday parties, leaving parties, 
crossword club, fish and chip supper nights, Halloween, conker evenings, annual charity 
Boxing Night quiz, local meetings and themed evenings. It has served food and drink to 
pub residents, passers-by, locals, holiday makers and visitors. 

When the pandemic occurred the Crown and Mitre bar remained open (subject to 
government rules) and continued to serve the public as well as pub residents. When it 

Page  54



was allowed to it continued to be used for birthday parties etc. At this time the landlady 
also held a series of evenings, serving themed food (BBQ / curry / Italian etc) as well as 
drinks from the bar to the general public.  

The pub was up for sale from 2012, with varying asking prices over the years of between 
£500,000.00 to £650,000.00. This attracted very little interest especially when other pubs 
locally were selling for considerably less. These alternative venues had parking onsite as 
well as outside sitting areas which the Crown lacked. For example: - 

 The Greyhound, Shap. Much larger pub with letting rooms, outside space and 
parking.  Sold in 2017 for £206,000. 

 Queens Head, Askham. Pub of similar size, including letting rooms, parking and 
outside space.  Sold in 2018 for £271,000.  

In an effort to sell the Crown and Mitre the owner stopped calling it an Inn / Pub and tried 
marketing it as a Hotel, Boutique Hotel or Guest House. There was no legal change of 
use. 

The pub was eventually sold in October of 2021. The locals anticipated the reopening of 
the pub only to be dismayed when it started operating as a 12-bedroom self-catering 
holiday let with games room and hot tub, used primarily by stag / hen parties who are 
causing considerable disruption and mess in the village. Exactly the situation the original 
ACV application was trying to prevent. 

Neither the previous owner nor the current owner have applied for a Change of Use for 
the Crown and Mitre pub. 

Page  55



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report No:  DoR43/22 

Eden District Council 

Cabinet 

21 June 2022 

Contract Award - Microsoft Enterprise Agreement 

Portfolio: Resources Portfolio Holder 

Report from: Interim Director of Resources 

Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 

1.1 The purpose of the report is to award a contract for Microsoft Licences for 
Eden District Council with effect from 1 August 2022 with an option that can 
be used to ensure licences are in place for the Westmorland and Furness 
Unitary Council from 1 April 2023. 

2 Recommendation 

2.1  It is recommended that a contract is awarded for the provision of Microsoft 
Licences to Insight Direct (UK) Ltd. 

3 Report Details 

3.1 Eden District Council has a Microsoft Enterprise Agreement, which is a 3 year 
contract with a License Reseller underpinned by an agreement with Microsoft 
who are the software provider. The Council renews this agreement every 3 
years for c300 licences which meets current requirements. 

3.2 The current agreement expires on the 31 July 2022, which means a new 
contract is required to maintain the Licenses up until vesting day 31 March 
2023. 

3.3 The Microsoft Licenses which are included in the agreement underpin the 
operation of all systems and equipment used within Eden District Council. 
Without the licenses the Council would not be able to function. 

3.4 A fully compliant procurement process has been undertaken using Crown 
Commercial Services Framework RM6068. To gain access to a higher level of 
pricing discounts, Eden District Council joined an aggregation procurement 
run by Crown Commercial Services, which they perform for various public 
sector organisations to maximise economies of scale. 

3.5 Crown Commercial Services have confirmed that Insight Direct (UK) Ltd was 
the winning supplier of our Lot with pricing totalling £943,581 savings across 
the 10 participating customers in the Lot. 

3.6 If approved the Council will contract directly with Insight Direct (UK) Ltd on the 
terms agreed and set out below. 

Page  57

Agenda Item 8



 

3.7 The procurement term for the new contract is for a period of 3 years, with an 
optional 4th year. If the optional 4th year is required, then approval will be 
sought at the time by following the appropriate governance processes. The 
contract timescale will extend beyond 1 April 2023 meaning this will be the 
responsibility of new Westmorland and Furness Council. 

3.8 This procurement process has been managed strategically to ensure that the 
Council’s requirements are met, whilst at the same time building options, 
which will benefit readiness for the new Westmorland & Furness Council. 

3.9 This has been achieved by using ‘multi tenancy’ facility that will allow the 
Microsoft Licenses used by Eden District Council, Barrow Borough Council, 
South Lakeland District Council and the disaggregated functions of Cumbria 
County Council to become part of a Master License Agreement that will 
facilitate the merging and moving of licenses to meet the requirements of the 
Westmorland and Furness Council, which may total up to c7900 licences. 

3.10 The contract will only commit the Council to pay for the licenses required for 
its own operations. This is because Eden’s core ICT infrastructure is being 
used to underpin the delivery of Shadow Westmorland and Furness Council. 
This provision will need to continue as part of the new Eden District Council 
contract. The costs for Shadow Westmorland and Furness Council are 
already approved via the LGR Programme Board. 

3.11 The 3 year contract for Eden District Council and Shadow Westmorland and 
Furness Council licence requirements will be £235,765.32. Detailed costs are 
set out in the finance section of the report. 

3.12 The Shadow Westmorland and Furness Unitary will consider a report at its 
meeting of 10 June, which consider the how to manage the implications of the 
section 24 spending direction. Whilst, seeking general consent for most spend 
this arrangement, subject to Cabinet approval, will be included as a specific 
project within the report allowing the multi-tenancy option to be progressed for 
Westmorland & Furness Council. 

3.13 The Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee has agreed to waive call in 
due to the timescales involved in entering into the relevant contract in order to 
ensure the effective operation of the Council’s IT system and delivery of 
services. 

4 Policy Framework 

4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 

 Healthy, safe and secure; 

 Connected; and 

 Creative 

5 Consultation 

5.1 Barrow Borough Council, South Lakeland District Council, Cumbria County 
Council, Copeland Borough Council, Allerdale Borough Council and Carlisle 
City Council have all been consulted as part of the LGR ICT Workstream. 
Detailed discussions have also taken place with Crown Commercial Services, 
Insight Direct (UK) as the reseller and with Microsoft to ensure the 

Page  58



 

recommendation is appropriate and compliant with the Microsoft Licence 
contract term. 

5.2 The recommendation in this report has the full support of all Councils and was 
agreed as appropriate at the LGR Programme Board on Tuesday 10 May 
2022. 

6 Implications 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income 
must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in 
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019. 

6.1.2 As described in the main report there are four financial elements: 

1) Commitment for Eden to continue Business as Usual Requirements, this 
will all be covered from existing Eden District Council budget provision. 
The costs for this element are: 

a. Year 1 - £65,383.04 

b. Year 2 - £65,383.04 

c. Year 3 - £65,383.04 

d. Total over 3 years - £196,149.12 

2) Commitment for Shadow Westmorland and Furness Licenses to be paid 
for from LGR implementation Budget – approval already in place for this 
cost of £13,205.40 per year (£39,616.20 for 3 years). 

3) LGR Programme Board support to cover any spend required to lock in the 
licence prices and categories that may be required (but not yet known or 
finalised) for the new Westmorland and Furness Unitary Council. Until the 
exact numbers of each licence type are known and confirmed, there may 
be a benefit to purchase a minimum of one licence type of each licence 
that may be required in the future. Exact numbers can ‘true’ up to the 
maximum volume scenario of c7900 licences. To allow this facility a cost 
of £13,000.00 per annum would be required and if exercised, will be paid 
for by the LGR implementation fund following approval from the LGR 
Programme Board. 

4) To ensure all potential scenarios are covered, the maximum total value of 
the 3 year contract is estimated at £8.2million for c7900 licences. This 
value covers the eventuality of maximum Potential licence requirements 
for the Westmorland & Furness Unitary and will provide headroom 
capacity for all licence type scenarios yet to be confirmed as part of the 
LGR Programme, particularly regarding the aggregation of District 
functions and disaggregation of existing Cumbria County Council services. 

For the avoidance of doubt, any costs incurred for the Westmorland & 
Furness Microsoft Licence requirements will be met by the LGR process, 
not the liability of Eden District Council. 

Eden District Council will only commit to and be liable for the licence 
requirements for Eden District Council. 

Page  59



 

6.2 Legal 

6.2.1 Eden District Council’s in house Legal team have been consulted from the 
start however as we move into reviewing and finalising the contract, external 
legal assistance funded from the LGR programme is being sought to ensure 
the timelines required can be achieved. Eden’s Legal team are supportive of 
external advice being sought. 

6.2.2 The use of Frameworks are allowed under, Clause 6.1 Supplier Selection, of 
the Council’s Procurement Procedures. Also, Eden District Council’s 
Constitution on Procurement Rules, Clause 4.5.3 allows the Executive to use 
a framework. In this case Framework RM6808 was used. 

6.3 Human Resources 

6.3.1 There are no Human Resource requirements as a result of this contract. 

6.3.2  Any requirements required as part of the LGR programme will be resourced 
as part of the programme. 

6.4 Environmental 

6.4.1 As this is a contract for continuity of service, there are no significant effects on 
carbon emissions and ecosystems. 

6.5 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity Not Applicable 

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

Not Applicable 

Crime and Disorder Not Applicable 

Children and 
Safeguarding 

Not Applicable 

6.6 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

The existing Eden 
District Council 
Microsoft Enterprise 
Agreement is permitted 
to end on 31 July 2022 
with no replacement in 
place. 

Eden District Council 
will be unable to 
maintain Business as 
Usual service delivery 
because it will not have 
the required licenses 
for the ICT systems and 
equipment to operate 

Approve the 
recommendations in 
this report 

There is no contract in 
place to provide the 
necessary roadmap for 
how the existing 
Microsoft licences will 

Inability to merge 
Microsoft licenses 
create a blockage to 
create a unified ICT 
Infrastructure for the 

Approve the 
recommendations in 
this report 

Page  60



 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

transition into the new 
Westmorland and 
Furness Unitary 
Council and managed 
in a cost effective 
manner. 

new Westmorland and 
Furness Unitary 
Authority, which would 
likely increase costs 
and have significant 
negative reputational 
impacts 

7 Other Options Considered 

7.1 The option being proposed is in line with the recommendations from both the 
LGR ICT Workstream and has the full support of the LGR Programme Board 
at its meeting on 10 May 2022. 

7.2 The only alternative option would be for Eden District Council to enter into a 
new Microsoft Licence Agreement solely for Eden’s requirements. This would 
require a separate procurement exercise to be repeated solely for the 
Westmorland & Furness requirements. This option would duplicate officer 
time, and may not return the economies of scale benefitted from the single 
contract and multi tenancy solution advised by Microsoft. 

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

8.1 The recommendation is presented for approval as this contract will meet the 
Microsoft Licence requirements of Eden District Council and Shadow 
Westmorland and Furness Council to ensure business as usual service 
delivery is maintained for Eden and Shadow Westmorland and Furness 
Council between the existing contract expiry and 1 April 2023. The multi-
tenancy element of the contract will also allow the successful licence 
transition into the new Westmorland & Furness Unitary Council licence 
requirements. 

8.2 The exact licence requirements for Westmorland & Furness Council will 
become clearer later in 2022 as the LGR Programme progresses. 

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 

Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 27 May 2022 

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 13 June 2022 

Relevant Assistant Director N/A 

Background Papers:  

Appendices: None 

Contact Officer: Ben Wright, Head of Shared ICT Service 

Page  61



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Asset of Community Value Nomination - The Highland Drove, Great Salkeld
	7 Asset of Community Value Nomination - Crown and Mitre, Bampton Grange
	DoR30-22_Appendices.pdf
	Nomination as an Asset of Community Value - The Crown and Mitre, Bampton Grange
	1 Purpose
	2 Recommendation
	3 Report Details
	4 Policy Framework
	5 Consultation
	6 Implications
	6.1 Financial and Resources
	6.2 Legal
	6.3 Human Resources
	6.4 Statutory Considerations
	6.5 Risk Management

	7 Other Options Considered
	8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation



	8 Contract Award - Microsoft Enterprise Agreement



